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Location: Steele’s Hill-Grafton Hill
525~529 Salem Avenue
Dayton
Montgomery County
Ohio
UTM: 16.738940.4405540

Significance: This building is significant for its contribution
to the commercial development of the Steele’s Hill~-Grafton Hill
Historic District; a district which was listed in the National
Register of Historic Places in 1986. The district is composed
mainly of late nineteenth and early twentieth century residential
buildings expressed with a mix of architectural styles. For a
description of the Steele’s Hill-Grafton Hill Historic District,
refer to HABS No. OH-2467.

Description: This is a one story, brick building that exhibits
plain architectural details associated with the Commercial style.
The main facade is divided into three retail bays which have been
extensively altered over the years. The only surviving original
details include columns articulating the three bay divisions and
large blind rectangular panels above each retail bay. The side
walls abut directly to adjacent buildings. At the rear, a
concrete block addition has been constructed. The interior space
has been altered over the years. No significant interior
architectural details survive from the original construction. At
present, two commercial land uses occupy the building; a barber
shop and a tavern.

History: This building was constructed in 1924 as an investment
by Henry Jacobs, a lawyer who resided within the Grafton Hill
Historic District. The first tenants included the Schultz
Brothers Grocery Store, a hair dresser, and a confectionery
store. The building contributed to a small cluster of varied
commercial activities that catered to the nearby residential
areas as well as to patrons who used Salem Avenue to travel from
the then expanding residential suburbs into downtown Dayton. The
commercial area was an active part of the historic district and
nearby residential areas until the 1960s. The Schultz Brothers
Grocery Store occupied one of the commercial bays from 1924 until
1932. They were the tenant to remain within the building the
longest. Over the years, a variety of uses were housed within the
building which included a hardware store, fruit store, cigar
store, drug store, and restaurant. The building will be demol-
ished to incorporate its lot within a new post office facility.
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Sources: Information used to prepare this documentation included
the following:

Drury, A. W., History of the City of Dayton and Montgomery
County, Ohio, Volume 1, 1909, S. J. Clark Publishing Co.

Montgomery County Recorder’s Office, Title Search.

Prosser, Teresa, National Register of Historic Places Inventory-
Nomination Form, Grafton Hill Historic District, 1986.

Sanborn Insurance Map Company, Insurance Map of Dayton Ohio,
Volume 2, 1919 and revisions.

William’s Publishing Company, William’s Dayton City Directory,
various dates.

Historian: Fred Mitchell
Historic Preservation Associates
1026 Lenox Place
Cincinnati, Ohio 45229
September, 1997
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